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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 09206019500

Parcel Address: 908 28TH AVE N
NASHVILLE, TN 37208

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 1/29/1990

Sale Price: $ 504.00

Sale Instrument: DB-00008153 0000527

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: E/S 28TH AVE NO N OF HERMAN ST
PT BLK 21 HEFFERMAN PLACE

Acreage: 0.07

Frontage Dimension: 36

Side Dimension: 78

Parcel Instrument: DB-00002495 0000401

Parcel Instrument
Date:

3/4/1956

Census Tract: 37014300

Tax District: USD

Council District: 21

Land Use
Description:

VACANT RESIDENTIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code OV-UZO

Zone Description

Effective Date 7/25/2007

Metro GIS
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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 08111027000

Parcel Address: 1601 WHELESS ST
NASHVILLE, TN 37208

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 1/10/1995

Sale Price: $ 382.00

Sale Instrument: DB-00009814 0000302

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: PT LOT 370 D T MCGAVOCK ADDN

Acreage: 0.04

Frontage Dimension: 25

Side Dimension: 90

Parcel Instrument: DB-00004392 0000106

Parcel Instrument
Date:

1/14/1970

Census Tract: 37013900

Tax District: USD

Council District: 21

Land Use
Description:

VACANT RESIDENTIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code OV-DDU

Zone Description THE DADU OVERLAY DISTRICT PROVIDES ADDITIONAL HOUSING OPTIONS IN THE
URBAN ZONING OVERLAY.

Effective Date 11/25/2021

Metro GIS
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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 10705025600

Parcel Address: 0 DABBS AVE
NASHVILLE, TN 37217

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 4/20/1977

Sale Price: $ 501.00

Sale Instrument: DB-00005413 0000910

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: LOT 234 SEC 2 BEL AIR

Acreage: 0.19

Frontage Dimension: 75

Side Dimension: 129

Parcel Instrument: DB-00003101 0000474

Parcel Instrument
Date:

7/25/1960

Census Tract: 37015804

Tax District: USD

Council District: 13

Land Use
Description:

VACANT RESIDENTIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code OV-AIR

Zone Description

Effective Date 1/1/1998

Ordinance O96-555

Metro GIS
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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 09316002900

Parcel Address: 8 CANNON ST
NASHVILLE, TN 37210

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 1/14/2002

Sale Price: $ 6,427.00

Sale Instrument: DB-20020313 0031562

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: PT LOTS 197 198 & 199, MAURY &
CLAIBORNE ADDN

Acreage: 0.08

Frontage Dimension: 33

Side Dimension: 105

Parcel Instrument: DB-00004821 0000689

Parcel Instrument
Date:

5/30/1974

Census Tract: 37014800

Tax District: USD

Council District: 19

Land Use
Description:

VACANT RESIDENTIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code OV-UZO

Zone Description

Effective Date 7/25/2007

Metro GIS
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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 14802011400

Parcel Address: 0 EZELL RD
NASHVILLE, TN 37211

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 12/8/2009

Sale Price: $ 773.00

Sale Instrument: CR-20100913 0072826

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: S/S EZELL RD E OF BAKERTOWN RD

Acreage: 0.14

Frontage Dimension: 50

Side Dimension: 128

Parcel Instrument: QC-00009476 0000465

Parcel Instrument
Date:

9/26/1994

Census Tract: 37015613

Tax District: USD

Council District: 28

Land Use
Description:

VACANT RESIDENTIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code OV-AIR

Zone Description

Effective Date 12/23/1974

Ordinance O73-650

Metro GIS
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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 09312009100

Parcel Address: 169 OLD HERMITAGE AVE
NASHVILLE, TN 37210

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 12/14/2010

Sale Price: $ 2,234.00

Sale Instrument: CR-20110419 0030277

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: LOT 38 MAURY & CLAIRBORNE
ADDN

Acreage: 0.14

Frontage Dimension: 35

Side Dimension: 165

Parcel Instrument: DB-00001906 0000405

Parcel Instrument
Date:

10/9/1950

Census Tract: 37014800

Tax District: USD

Council District: 19

Land Use
Description:

VACANT COMMERCIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code CS

Zone Description COMMERCIAL SERVICE IS INTENDED FOR RETAIL, CONSUMER SERVICE, FINANCIAL,
RESTAURANT, OFFICE, NEW AUTO SALES, SELF-STORAGE, LIGHT MANUFACTURING AND

Metro GIS
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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 09316036000

Parcel Address: 85 DONELSON ST
NASHVILLE, TN 37210

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 1/14/2002

Sale Price: $ 9,559.00

Sale Instrument: DB-20020313 0031565

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: PT LOT 8 BLK C HERMITAGE ADDN

Acreage: 0.09

Frontage Dimension: 25

Side Dimension: 150

Parcel Instrument: DB-00001248 0000473

Parcel Instrument
Date:

6/13/1943

Census Tract: 37014800

Tax District: USD

Council District: 19

Land Use
Description:

VACANT RESIDENTIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code OV-UZO

Zone Description

Effective Date 7/25/2007

Ordinance BL2007-1426

Metro GIS
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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 08111054300

Parcel Address: 1626 12TH AVE N
NASHVILLE, TN 37208

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 9/18/2012

Sale Price: $ 1,587.00

Sale Instrument: CR-20131022 0110202

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: PT LOT 125 D T MCGAVOCK &
OTHERS ADDN

Acreage: 0.09

Frontage Dimension: 25

Side Dimension: 154

Parcel Instrument: DB-00001915 0000358

Parcel Instrument
Date:

12/17/1950

Census Tract: 37013900

Tax District: USD

Council District: 21

Land Use
Description:

VACANT RESIDENTIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code OV-DDU

Zone Description THE DADU OVERLAY DISTRICT PROVIDES ADDITIONAL HOUSING OPTIONS IN THE
URBAN ZONING OVERLAY.

Metro GIS
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Nashville Planning Department

800 2nd Ave S

P.O. Box 196300

Nashville, TN 37219-6300

maps.nashville.gov

Parcel Details
Parcel ID: 08116002700

Parcel Address: 1514 14TH AVE N
NASHVILLE, TN 37208

Owner: METRO GOV'T BT BACK TAX SALE

Acquired Date: 10/9/2000

Sale Price: $ 0.00

Sale Instrument: DB-20001101 0108185

Mailing Address: P O BOX 196300
NASHVILLE,TN 37219

Legal Description: PT LOT 220 D T MCGAVOCK AND
OTHERS ADDN

Acreage: 0.07

Frontage Dimension: 18

Side Dimension: 170

Parcel Instrument: DB-00002038 0000562

Parcel Instrument
Date:

3/6/1952

Census Tract: 37013900

Tax District: USD

Council District: 21

Land Use
Description:

VACANT RESIDENTIAL LAND

Zoning Hide

Zone Code OV-DDU

Zone Description THE DADU OVERLAY DISTRICT PROVIDES ADDITIONAL HOUSING OPTIONS IN THE
URBAN ZONING OVERLAY.

Metro GIS
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3. 

4. 

5. 

B. 

B.1.

C. 

C.1.

C.2.

C.3.

The Grantee will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site inspections of the 
grantee for compliance Barnes program requirements including, but not limited to, reviewing 
tenant income calculations, rent determinations and utility allowances. 

Compliance restrictions on both tenant income and maximum rents shall apply for thirty (30) 
years from the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the final building within the 
project. If a certificate of occupancy is not issued, the compliance period will begin on the date of 
recordatlon of the notice of completion for the project. 

Recipient shall not increase rents during the initial lease term, but such prohibition shall not apply 
to any renewal of the lease, nor shall it affect the portion of rent paid by another federal, state, or 
local program with respect to the tenant or units benefitting from the grant funds. 

GRANT CONTRACT TERM: 

Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant agreement until 
Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the execution of the grant 
agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services rendered by the Recipient which are not 
performed within this term. Pursuant to Metropolitan Code of Laws§ 2.149.040 (G), in the event 
the recipient fails to complete its obligations under this grant contract within twenty-four months 
from execution, Metro is authorized to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated 
funds from the organization. 

PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant Contract 
exceed Two Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($275,000). The Grant Budget, attached 
and incorporated herein as part of Attachment A, shall constitute the maximum amount to be 
provided to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient's obligations hereunder. The Grant 
Budget line items include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all other 
direct and indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the Recipient. 

This amount shall constitute the Grant Amount and the entire compensation to be provided to the 
Recipient by Metro. 

Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any reason. 
The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is not subject to 
escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended. 

Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based upon the 
Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1. Upon execution of 
the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the Recipient may be eligible to receive 
reimbursement for milestones as completed based upon the Grant Budget. 

a. Grant Draws

Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the property by Metro
or an approved designee. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of the
project.

1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule (% based on grant amount)

• 12.5% - upon receipt of the Building Permit (check property address and
contractors name) and Builder's Risk Insurance sufficient to cover cost of
construction and confirmation of acquisition (make sure Metro is listed as
lien holder)

• 25% - footing framing and foundation completed (25% complete)

• 25% - roofing completed and the plumbing, electric and mechanical are
roughed in and approved by local Codes (50% complete)

(�0281S8S ti 2 
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February 15, 2023 

 

 

Living Development Concepts, Inc. 

Attn: Henry Miller 

3250 Dickerson Pike, Suite 212 

Nashville, TN 37207 

RE: Letter of Interest 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

The Housing Fund would like to work with Living Development Concepts, Inc. in 
offering financing up to $900,00 for a construction/bridge loan for an affordable housing 
project located at 908 28

th
 Ave N., 1601 Wheless St., 2937 A & B Brick Church Pk., and 

2939 A & B Brick Church Pk. 
 
Final approval is contingent upon, but not limited to, any finding of substantial  
deterioration in Living Development Concepts, Inc. financial strength, satisfactory 
appraisal, clear title, and final underwriting. 

Sincerely, 

 

Alisha Haddock 

Senior Vice President 

Director of Community and Economic Development 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50 Vantage Way, Suite 201  Nashville, TN 37228  Phone: 615.780.7000  www.thehousingfund.org 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3BB1E895-249E-432B-B6B4-22BAC7AAF223

http://www.thehousingfund.org/


Barnes Housing Trust Fund Round 11 Work Scope 

Organization: Living Development Concepts, Inc. 

Development Type: Homeowner 

Development Address: 908 28th Ave N, Nashville, TN 37208; 1601 Wheless St, Nashville, TN 37208 

Metro Donated Property:  

Parcel Number Address 

09206019500 908 28th Ave N 

08111027000 1601 Wheless St 

Amount Awarded: $275,000 

Number of Barnes-funded Units: 2 

Target Populations Served: All income-eligible homebuyers 

AMI Targets:  

Below 30% AMI 31-60% AMI 61-80% AMI 

2 

Homeowner and Rehab Proceeds Policy 

How will any proceeds from sales or repayment of liens be reported and repurposed? 
Since we only build new construction homebuyer projects, the proceeds from any of our home sales will 
be reported on our final closeout report to the Housing Trust Fund Commission.  This information helps 
staff and the commission understands the development process and provides updated information for 
the Division of Housing’s reporting.  These proceeds will be repurposed in other Barnes-funded 
activities. 

All liens will be paid off at closing by our title company.  This will provide a free and clear title for the 
homebuyer.  
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   “FOCUSING ON THE COMMUNITY” 

 
3250 Dickerson Pike, Suite 212 

Nashville, TN  37207 
(615) 823-1931 

 
 

 

Mission Statement: 

Our mission is to provide reliable housing services in the development of safe, decent and 
affordable housing for low and very low income individuals.  To provide community 
service opportunities through our staff volunteer program to further this mission.  Our 
purpose is to operate as an advocate for housing acquisition opportunities within this 
community through awareness of resources. 
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3. The Grantee will allow Metro or a Metro-approved contractor to conduct on-site inspections of the
grantee for compliance Barnes program requirements including, but not limited to, reviewing
tenant income calculations, rent determinations and utility allowances.

4. Compliance restrictions on both tenant income and maximum rents shall apply for thirty (30)
years from the date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the final building within the
project. If a certificate of occupancy is not issued, the compliance period will begin on the date of
recordation of the notice of completion for the project.

5. Recipient shall not increase rents during the initial lease term, but such prohibition shall not apply
to any renewal of the lease, nor shall it affect the portion of rent paid by another federal, state, or
local program with respect to the tenant or units benefitting from the grant funds.

B. GRANT CONTRACT TERM:

8.1. Grant Contract Term. The term of this Grant shall be from execution of the grant agreement until 
Project completion, but in no way greater than 24 months from the execution of the grant 
agreement. Metro shall have no obligation for services rendered by the Recipient which are not 
performed within this term. Pursuant to Metropolitan Code of Laws§ 2.149.040 (G), in the event 
the recipient fails to complete its obligations under this grant contract within twenty-four months 
from execution, Metro is authorized to rescind the contract and to reclaim previously appropriated 
funds from the organization. 

C. PAYMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

C.1. Maximum Liability. In no event shall the maximum liability of Metro under this Grant Contract 
exceed Three Hundred Fifty-Nine Thousand Dollars ($359,000). The Grant Budget, attached and 
incorporated herein as part of Attachment A, shall constitute the maximum amount to be provided 
to the Recipient by Metro for all of the Recipient's obligations hereunder. The Grant Budget line 
items include, but are not limited to, all applicable taxes, fees, overhead, and all other direct and 
indirect costs incurred or to be incurred by the Recipient. 

This amount shall constitute the Grant Amount and the entire compensation to be provided to the 
Recipient by Metro. 

C.2. Compensation Firm. The maximum liability of Metro is not subject to escalation for any reason. 
The Grant Budget amount is firm for the duration of the Grant Contract and is not subject to 
escalation for any reason unless the grant contract is amended. 

C.3. Payment Methodology. The Recipient shall be compensated for actual costs based upon the 
Grant Budget, not to exceed the maximum liability established in Section C.1. Upon execution of 
the Grant Contract and receipt of a request for payment, the Recipient may be eligible to receive 
reimbursement for milestones as completed based upon the Grant Budget. 

a. Grant Draws

Before a draw can be made, there must be a physical inspection of the property by Metro
or an approved designee. The inspection must confirm appropriate completion of the
project.

1) Construction Grant Draw Schedule(% based on grant amount)

• 12.5% - upon receipt of the Building Permit (check property address and
contractors name) and Builder's Risk Insurance sufficient to cover cost of
construction and confirmation of acquisition (make sure Metro is listed as
lien holder)

• 25% - footing framing and foundation completed (25% complete)

• 25% - roofing completed and the plumbing, electric and mechanical are
roughed in and approved by local Codes {50% complete)

{N0281585.lf 2 
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Barnes Housing Trust Fund Round 11 Work Scope 

Organization: Affordable Housing Resources 

Development Type: Homeowner 

Development Address: 85 Donelson St, Nashville, TN 37210; 1626 12th Ave N, Nashville, TN 37208; 

1514 14th Ave N, Nashville, TN 37208 

Metro Donated Property: 

Parcel Number 

09316036000 

08111054300 

08116002700 

Amount Awarded: $359,000 

Number of Barnes-funded Units: 3 

Address 

85 Donelson St 

1626 12th Avenue N 

1514 14th Avenue N 

Target Populations Served: All income-eligible homebuyers 

AMI Targets: 

Below 30% AMI 31-60%AMI 

Homeowner and Rehab Proceeds Policy 

61-80%AMI

3 

How will any proceeds from sales or repayment of liens be reported and repurposed? 

AHR will collect a developer fee of up to 15% for the projects and any additional proceeds will be used 

to cover future pre-development and/or development costs for other affordable housing developments 

produced by the organization. 
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BARNES HOUSING TRUST FUND HOMEBUYER PROFORMA

Unit Address Multiple Scattered Lots

Development Type Single Family Detached

Accessible Bus Line Routes Yes

Number of Bedrooms 3

Number of Bathrooms 2

Square Feet 1400

Number of Stories 2

Number of Units 4

Acquisition Costs

Land with Structure

Title & Recording 10,000 

Legal

Total 10,000 

Predevelopment Costs

Appraisal 2,100 

Survey 7,500 

Relocation (if applicable)

Insurance 1,800 

Architect

Engineering

Planning/Zoning

Construction Financing 3,000 

Construction Interest 30,000 

Other

Total 44,400 

Site and Infrastucture Costs

Water and Sewer Fees

Equipmet Mobilizaton

Clearing and Grubbing

Survey/Layout
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BARNES HOUSING TRUST FUND HOMEBUYER PROFORMA
Erosion Control ESPC

Mass Grading

Blasting

Retaining Wall

Sewer 

Storm Water

Water

Electric

Paving

Sidewalk

Curb & Gutter

Contingency

Total

Construction Costs

Structure

Footer/Foundation/Slab 36,000                               

Framing 150,000                            

Electrical 42,000                               

Plumbing including taps 60,000                               

Roofing 18,000                               

HVAC 33,000                               

Drywall/Insulation 24,000                               

Paint/Stain 33,000                               

Windows/Doors 30,000                               

Floor Coverings 18,000                               

Cabinets 36,000                               

Brick/Siding 30,000                               

Sub-Total 510,000                            

Other

Dumpsters 4,200                                 

Site Work 13,500                               

Appliances 10,500                               42

Decks/Porches 9,000                                 
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BARNES HOUSING TRUST FUND HOMEBUYER PROFORMA
Side Walks/Driveways 13,500                               

Landscaping 7,500                                 

Utility Hookups - Temp elect 3,000                                 

Building Permits/Fees 3,300                                 

Demolition -                                     

Gutters/Splashblocks 3,000                                 

Mirrors/Shelving 3,300                                 

Final Punch 6,000                                 

Utility expenses 3,000                                 

Fees - Water and Sewer 13,500                               

Materials and Labor Market 

Contingency Cost Overrun
15,000                               

Sub-Total 108,300                            

Construction Contingency 45,000                               

Profit (if organization has own 

construction crew)
-                                     

Sub-Total 45,000                               

Total Construction Cost 717,700                            

Cost per Unit 239,233                            

Developer's Fee (capped at 20%)
28,708                               

Total Cost/Unit 267,941                            

Total Debt Service NA

Debt Coverage Ratio NA

Operating Reserve NA
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AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS

OF

AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC. 

ARTICLE 1
Name and Office

The name of this Corporation is AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.  The

principal office of this Corporation is located at 1011 Cherry Street, Nashville, Davidson County,

Tennessee 37203.  The Corporation may have offices at such other places, either within or without

the State of Tennessee. 

ARTICLE 2
Purpose

The Corporation was formed for charitable, educational, and scientific purposes, with its

primary objective being to promote the development of adequate housing for low and moderate

income people in the metropolitan area of Nashville, Tennessee, and throughout the State of

Tennessee, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

1. To promote community development through the rehabilitation and construction of
affordable housing and building neighborhoods. 

2. To provide planning, designing, financing, processing, construction, sale, and
management for new and rehabilitated housing.

3. To promote research and development of new methods  of constructing and financing
housing. 

4. To provide technical support and encouragement to other persons and entities who
undertake similar activities.

5. To provide activities, information, and resources targeted to home ownership, credit
enhancement, and other counseling services related to obtaining and preserving home
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ownership.

6. To provide financing initiatives, develop an equity fund for such purposes as down
payment and closing costs assistance, and other related activities.

7. To provide relief of the poor and distressed, lessen the burdens of government,
combat community deterioration and lessen neighborhood tensions, and stabilize
communities and neighborhoods.

8. To do all other activities allowed and permitted for a nonprofit corporation under the
laws of the State of Tennessee.

ARTICLE 3

Directors

(a) The business and property of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by a

Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors serving in office shall serve until the next annual

meeting of the Board or until their elected term has expired, or until the election and qualification

of their respective successors, except as hereinafter otherwise provided for filling vacancies.  The

Board of Directors shall have the power to establish advisory committees as they deem needed.

(b) The Chairman shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors from among their

number.

(c) The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors.

(d) At the request of the Chairman, or in the event of his or her absence or disability, an

acting chair shall be appointed by a majority of the members present to perform the duties and

powers and exercise the powers of the Chairman.  To the extent authorized by law, the acting chair

shall have such other powers as the Board of Directors may determine and shall perform such other

duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.
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(e) The number of Directors shall not be less than nine nor more than fifteen.  Such

number may be increased or decreased by amendment to these Bylaws, in the manner set forth in

Article 11.  When the number of Directors is decreased by amendment adopted by the Board of

Directors, each Director in office shall serve until his or her term expires, or until his or her

resignation or removal as herein provided.  The Corporation is not a membership organization.    

(f) Directors shall be divided into three classes with each class consisting of no more

than one-third of the persons on the Board of Directors. Directors in each class shall be elected  every

third year and serve for a three (3) year term.  Directors may serve successive terms.

 (g) Any Director may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to

the Board of Directors.  Directors may be removed from office by an affirmative vote of eighty

percent (80%) of the members of the Board.  Directors alleged by authorities to have committed

crimes of moral turpitude may be removed by a majority vote of the Board members. Directors are

automatically removed without a vote by failing to attend three consecutive meetings without just

cause or excuse.

(h) Any vacancy in the Board of Directors occurring during the year, including a vacancy

created by an increase in the number of Directors made by the Board of Directors, may be filled for

the unexpired portion of the term by the Directors then serving, although less than a quorum, by

affirmative vote of the majority thereof.  Any Director so elected by the Board of Directors shall hold

office until the next succeeding annual meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, until

the elected term has expired, or until the election and qualification of a successor.

(i) The annual meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall be held at any

place within or without the State of Tennessee at a time and on a date determined by the Executive
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Director, for the purpose of electing Directors and officers for the next succeeding year, and for the

transaction of such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

(j) Notice of the time, place, and purpose or purposes of the annual meeting shall be

served, either personally, by mail, or by facsimile, not less than three nor more than forty (40) days

before the meeting upon each person who is then serving as a Director.

(k) Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairman, and

twenty four (24) hour notice shall be given by email,  telephone, or facsimile to all Directors.

(l) Notice of all Directors' meetings, except as herein otherwise provided, shall be given

by mail to the same at least three days or by telephone, email, or facsimile to the same at least one

day before the meeting to the usual business or residence address of the Director, but such notice

may be waived by any Director.  Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without

notice at such time and place as shall be determined by the Board.  At any meeting at which every

Director shall be present, even though without any notice or waiver thereof, any business may be

transacted.

(m) At all meetings of the Board of Directors, the Chairman, or in his or her absence an

acting  chairman chosen by the Directors present, shall preside.

(n) At all meetings of the Board of Directors, or any Committee thereof, a majority of

the Directors or committee members present shall be sufficient to constitute a quorum for the

transaction of business, and the act of a majority of the Directors, or committee members present at

any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board of Directors or the committee

except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute or by these Bylaws.  A Board member

may appoint a proxy in writing, email or facsimile to attend any meeting and vote in his or her
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behalf. The Executive Director shall not have a vote.

(o) The Directors and officers of the Corporation may be interested directly or indirectly

in any contract relating to or incidental to the operations conducted by the Corporation and may

freely make contracts, enter transactions, or otherwise act for and on behalf of the Corporation,

notwithstanding that they may also be acting as individuals, or as trustees of trusts, or as agents for

other persons or corporations, or may be interested in the same matters as shareholders, directors,

or otherwise; provided, however, that any contract, transaction, or act on behalf of the Corporation

in a matter in which the Directors or officers are personally interested as shareholders, directors, or

otherwise shall be at arm's length and not violate the provisions of the Charter or the laws of the

State of Tennessee against the Corporation's use or application of its funds for private benefit; and

provided further that no contract, transaction, or act shall be taken on behalf of the Corporation if

such contract, transaction, or act is a prohibited transaction, or would result in the denial of the tax

exemption under Section 503 or Section 507 of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as

they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.  In no event, however, shall any person or other

entity dealing with the Directors or officers be obligated to inquire into the authority of the Directors

and officers to enter into and consummate any contract, transaction, or other action.

(p) Directors shall not receive any stated salary for their services as a Director, but by

resolution of the Board a fixed reasonable sum of expenses of attendance, if any, or both, may be

allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting of the Board.  The Board of Directors shall

have power in its discretion to contract for and to pay to Directors rendering unusual or exceptional

services to the Corporation special compensation appropriate to the value of such services.

(q) All the corporate powers, except such as are otherwise provided for in these Bylaws
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and in the laws of the State of Tennessee, shall be and are hereby vested in and shall be exercised

by the Board of Directors.  In addition to the powers and authority vested in the Executive

Committee as established in Article 6 below, the Board of Directors may by general resolution

delegate to committees of their own number, to the Executive Committee, or to officers of the

Corporation, such powers as they may see fit.

ARTICLE 4

Officers

(a) The officers of the Corporation shall be the  Executive Director, Secretary, Treasurer,

and such other officers with such powers and duties not inconsistent with these Bylaws as may be

appointed and determined by the Board of Directors.  Any two officers may be held by the same

person except those of Executive Director and Secretary.  

(b) The other officers shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors from among

such persons as the Board of Directors may see fit, at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors.

(c) In case any office of the Corporation becomes vacant by death, resignation,

retirement, disqualification, or any other cause, the majority of the Directors then in office, although

less than a quorum, may elect an officer to fill such vacancy, and the officer so elected shall hold

office and serve until the term is expired, the first meeting of the Board of Directors after the annual

meeting next succeeding or until the election and qualification of a successor.

(d) The Executive Director shall have and exercise general charge and supervision of the

affairs of the Corporation and shall do and perform such other duties as may be assigned to the

Executive Director by the Board of Directors.
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(e) The Secretary shall have charge of such books, documents, and papers as the Board

of Directors may determine.  He or she shall attend and oversee keeping the minutes of all meetings

of the Board of Directors of the Corporation.  He or she may sign with the Chairman or acting

chairman, in the name and on behalf of the Corporation, any contracts or agreements authorized by

the Board of Directors or Executive Committee.  He or she shall, in general, perform all the duties

incident to the office of secretary, subject to the control of the Board of Directors and Executive

Committee, and shall do and perform such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the

Board of Directors or the Executive Committee.

(f) The Treasurer shall report on all funds, property, and securities of the Corporation,

subject to such regulations as may be imposed by the Board of Directors.  The Treasurer, or any

other officer of the Corporation,  may be required to give bond for the faithful performance of his

or her duties, in such sum and with such sureties as the Board of Directors may require. Such officer

or officers as designated by the Board of Directors shall sign all checks of the Corporation and

promissory notes issued by the Corporation, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof

shall be expressly designated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws to some other officer or

agent of the Corporation.  The Treasurer shall report on the books of the Corporation for the purpose

of full and accurate account of all money and obligations received and paid or incurred by him for

or on account of the Corporation. The Treasurer shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to

the office of treasurer, subject to the control of the Board of Directors.

(g) Any officer may be removed from office by an affirmative  vote of eighty percent

(80%) or more of the Directors present at any regular or special meeting called for that purpose, for

conduct detrimental to the interests of the Corporation, for lack of sympathy with its objectives, or
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for refusal to render reasonable assistance in carrying out its purposes. 

ARTICLE 5

Executive Committee

(a) The Executive Committee assists the Executive Director and Board of Directors.  The

Executive Committee shall consist of those persons selected and approved by the Board of Directors.

The initial Executive Committee shall consist of the former Chairman, the current Chairman, the

chairs of the Finance Committee, Governing Committee, and Stakeholder Committee, and the

Executive Director (who is non-voting).

(b) Notice of Executive Committee meetings, except as herein otherwise provided, shall

be given to the same by mail, phone, email or fax at least one (1) day before the meeting to the usual

business or residence address of the Committee member, but such notice may be waived by any

Committee member.

(c) Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be called by the Chairman or Vice-

Chairman and twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be given by telephone, email, or facsimile to each

Committee member.

(d) At all meetings of the Executive Committee, a majority of those present shall

constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority of the Committee

members present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Executive

Committee except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute or by these bylaws.  An

Executive Committee member may appoint a proxy in writing or facsimile to attend any meeting and

vote in his or her behalf.
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(e) As delegated by the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee shall oversee the

daily operations, including personnel, of the Corporation.  The Committee shall solicit input,

direction and advice from other members of the Board of Directors and shall update the Board of

Directors on a periodic basis of actions and decisions of the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE 6

Other Committees

(a) Other Committees.  The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority

of the Directors then in office (provided a quorum is present), create such other committees, each

consisting of one (1) or more Directors appointed by the Board, as it may from time to time deem

advisable to perform such general or special duties as may from time to time be delegated to any

such committee by the Board of Directors, subject to the limitations contained in the Tennessee

Nonprofit Corporation Act, or imposed by the Charter, or by these Bylaws. The Board of Directors

may not delegate to a committee the decision to borrow money, to enter into a merger or acquisition,

to sell any substantial asset, or to sell any asset for less than fair value.  The Board of Directors may

designate one or more Directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent

member at any meeting of the committee.

(b) Minutes and Reports.  Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings,

which shall be filed with the Secretary.  All action by any committee shall be reported to the Board

of Directors at the next meeting thereof, and, insofar as rights of third parties shall not be affected

thereby, shall be subject to revisions and alteration by the Board of Directors.

(c) Meetings.  Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or by resolution of the

Board of Directors, each committee shall adopt its own rules governing the time and place of holding
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and the method of calling its meetings and the conduct of its proceedings and shall meet as provided

by such rules, and it shall also meet at the call of any member of the committee.  Unless otherwise

provided by such rules or by resolution of the Board of Directors, committee meetings shall be

governed by Article III of these Bylaws.

(d) Term of Office of Committee Members.  Each committee member shall serve at the

pleasure of the Board of Directors but not to exceed three (3) years.

(e) Advisory Councils.  The Corporation may from time to time establish one or more

Advisory Council(s) to provide such assistance to the Corporation as may be requested by the

Corporation.  Any such Advisory Council(s) shall have no rights, powers of responsibility with

respect to the Corporation.  A member of any such Advisory Council(s) may, however, undertake

specific projects for the Corporation as may be mutually determined by the Corporation and such

member.

ARTICLE 7

Fiscal Policies

(a) The Corporation shall adopt a calendar year, from January 1 to December 31, for its

accounting and record keeping purposes.

(b) The Board of Directors is empowered to request an accounting at any time by a

majority vote and may set the policy of all financial matters pertaining to the operation of the

Corporation.

(c) The Board of Directors shall maintain and preserve the principal of the assets held

in this Corporation from time to time in order that the net income to be derived therefrom shall be
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devoted and applied exclusively for the purposes described above, or for any related activities within

the scope of the purpose of this organization.

(d) Subject to the approval of, and acceptance by the Board of Directors, any other person

or entity may transfer and deliver any kind of property, real or personal, tangible or intangible, to the

Board of Directors, their successors and assigns, by deed, assignment, or will, and such property

shall be held, managed, and disposed of in accordance with the provisions of this Corporation.

(e) Once the principal of the Corporation reaches an amount deemed appropriate by the

Board of Directors for special investment direction, there shall be established a committee of the

Board of Directors known as the Investment Advisory Council.  The Investment Advisory Council

shall consist of three (3) members (who may include persons who are not members of the Board of

Directors), all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors, and at least (1) of whom shall be

a member of the Board of Directors.  Initially, one member shall be elected for a one (1) year term,

one elected for a two (2) year term, and one elected for a three (3) year term, and thereafter, each

member shall serve a two (2) year term.  A member may be elected to successive terms, but no

member may serve for more than six (6) consecutive years.  In the event of the resignation, death,

or removal of any member of the Council, or in the event the office of a Council member becomes

vacant for any reason, the Board of Directors shall elect a successor to fill such vacancy.  The Board

of Directors shall appoint one of the members to serve as Chairperson of the Council for a one (1)

year term.  The Chairperson may be elected to successive terms, but no member may serve for more

than two (2) consecutive years as Chairperson.  In the event of the resignation, death, or removal of

the Chairperson, or in the event the office of the Chairperson becomes vacant for any reason, the

Board of Directors shall appoint a successor Chairperson.  The duties of the Investment Advisory

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3BB1E895-249E-432B-B6B4-22BAC7AAF223



12

Council shall be to:

(1) supervise the investment of the fund with emphasis on producing income
consistent with preserving the principal of the fund;

(2) retain an investment counselor, if they deem it necessary, and determine such
person's compensation;

(3) maintain specific records of the investment of the fund;
(4) make quarterly and annual reports to the Board of Directors; 
(5) report to the Board of Directors annually the amount of net income derived

from investment of the principal; and 
(6) carry out such other responsibilities as may be directed from time to time by

the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 8

Prohibition Against Sharing in Corporation Earnings

No director, officer, employee, or any other person connected with the Corporation, or any

other private individual shall receive at any time any of the net earnings or pecuniary profit from the

operations of the Corporation, provided that this shall not prevent the payment to any person of

reasonable compensation for services rendered to or for the Corporation in effecting any of its

purposes as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors; and no such person or persons shall be entitled

to share in the distribution of any of the corporate assets upon the dissolution of the Corporation.

Upon such dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation, whether voluntary or

involuntary, the assets of the Corporation, after all debts have been satisfied, then remaining in the

hands of the Board of Directors shall be distributed, transferred, conveyed, delivered, and paid over,

in such amounts as the Board of Directors may determine exclusively to charitable, religious,

scientific, testing for public safety, literary, or educational organizations which would then qualify

under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as they

now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.  No director shall be personally liable for the debts
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of the Corporation.

ARTICLE 9

Investments

The Corporation shall have the right to retain all or any part of any securities or property

acquired by it in whatever manner and to invest and reinvest any funds held by it, according to the

judgment of the Board of Directors, provided, however, that no action shall be taken by or on behalf

of the Corporation if such action is a prohibited transaction or would result in the denial of the tax

exemption under Section 503 or Section 507 of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations as

they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.

ARTICLE 10

Exempt Activities

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, no director, officer, employee, or

representative of this Corporation shall take any action or carry on any activity by or on behalf of the

Corporation not permitted to be taken or carried on by an organization exempt under Section

501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulation as they now exist or as they may hereafter

be amended, or by an organization to which contributions are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of

such Code and Regulations as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.

ARTICLE 11

Conflicts of Interest

(a) Purpose   The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect the interests of
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the Corporation when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might

potentially benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the Corporation or might result in

a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any

applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable

Corporations.

(b) Definitions    As used in these Bylaws, the following terms shall be defined to be

interpreted as follows:

1. Interested Person: Any director, officer, or committee member of the
Corporation who is delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial
interest, as defined below, is an interested person.

2. Financial Interest:    A person has a financial interest if the person has,
directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:

(i) An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the
Corporation has a transaction or arrangement,

(ii) A compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any entity
or individual with which the Corporation has a transaction or
arrangement, or

(iii) A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation
arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the
Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not

insubstantial.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest.

Under Section (b), Item 2, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of

interest only if the appropriate Board of Directors or committee decides that a conflict of interest

exists.
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(c) Procedures.   

1. Duty to Disclose:    In connection with any actual or possible conflict of
interest, an interested person must disclose the existence of the financial
interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the
directors and members of committees with Board of Directors delegated
powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists:    After disclosure of the
financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the
interested person, he/she shall leave the Board of Directors or committee
meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and
voted upon. The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a
conflict of interest exists.

3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest:   

(i) An interested person may make a presentation at the Board of
Directors or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she
shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the
transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.

(ii) The chairperson of the Board of Directors or committee shall, if
appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to
investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.

(iii) After exercising due diligence, the Board of Directors or committee
shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain with reasonable
efforts a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person
or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.

(iv) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably
possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the
Board of Directors or committee shall determine by a majority vote
of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement
is in the Corporation's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether
it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination
it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or
arrangement.

4. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy:   

(i) If the Board of Directors or committee has reasonable cause to
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believe a member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of
interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and
afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to
disclose.

(ii) If, after hearing the member's response and after making further
investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the Board of
Directors or committee determines the member has failed to disclose
an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate
disciplinary and corrective action.

(d) Records of Proceedings   The minutes of the Board of Directors and all committees

with board delegated powers shall contain:

1. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a
financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest,
the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a
conflict of interest was present, and the Board of Directors's or committee's
decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.

2. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating
to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any
alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any
votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

(e) Compensation.   

1. A voting member of the Board of Directors who receives compensation,
directly or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from
voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.

2. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes
compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly,
from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters
pertaining to that member's compensation.

3. No voting member of the Board of Directors or any committee whose
jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation,
directly or indirectly, from the Corporation, either individually or
collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee
regarding compensation.
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(f) Annual Statements.    Each director, officer, and member of a committee to which the

Board of Directors delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person:

1. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy.
2. Has read and understands the policy.
3. Has agreed to comply with the policy. 
4. Understands the Corporation is charitable and educational, and in order to

maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities
which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

(g) Periodic Reviews.  To ensure the Corporation operates in a manner consistent with

charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status,

periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following

subjects:

1. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on
competent survey information, and the result of arm's length bargaining.

2. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management
Corporations conform to the Corporation's written policies, are properly
recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services,
further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible
private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction.

(h) Use of Outside Experts.   When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in

this Article 11, the Corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used,

their use shall not relieve the Board of Directors of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews

are conducted.

ARTICLE 12

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

(a) Indemnification by Corporation.  

1. For the purpose of this Article 12, “agent” means any person who is or was
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a director, officer, employee or other agent of the Corporation, or is or was
serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee, or
agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture,
trust or other enterprise, or was a director, officer, employee or agent of a
foreign or domestic corporation which was a predecessor corporation of the
Corporation or of another enterprise at the request of such predecessor
corporation; “proceeding” means any threatened, pending, or completed
action or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative;
and “expenses” includes without limitation attorneys’ fees and any expenses
of establishing a right to indemnification under Sub-Paragraph (2) or Sub-
Paragraph (3) of this Article 12, Paragraph (a).

2. The Corporation shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify any
person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was an agent of the
Corporation, against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other
amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such
proceeding.

3. In the event entitlement to indemnification is required by law to be based
upon a determination by the Board of Directors that the agent has met the
standards of conduct prescribed by law, the agent may select which body
shall, or that both bodies shall, make such determination, and such body shall
meet and shall reach a determination on the issue within a reasonable period
of time after request for such body to meet is received by the Corporation
from the agent. 

4. To the extent that an agent of the Corporation has been successful on the
merits in defense of any proceedings referred to in Subparagraphs 2 and 3
above, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, the agent shall be
indemnified against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the agent
in connection therewith.

5. Except as provided in Subparagraph 4 above, any indemnification under this
Article 12 shall be made by the Corporation only if authorized in the specific
case, under a determination that indemnification of the agent is proper in the
circumstances because the agent has met the applicable standard of conduct
set forth in Subparagraphs 2 and 3 above, by:

(i) A majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who are not
parties to such proceeding;

(ii) The court in which such proceeding is or was pending upon
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application made by the Corporation or the agent or the attorney or
other person rendering services in connection with the defense,
whether or not such application by the agent, attorney, or other person
is opposed by the Corporation.

6. No indemnification or advance shall be made under this Article II, except as
provided in Subparagraph 4 or Subparagraph 5 above, in any circumstance
where it appears:

(i) That it would be inconsistent with a provision of the Charter, the
Bylaws, a resolution of the Board of Directors or an agreement in
effect at the time of the accrual of the alleged cause of action asserted
n the proceeding in which the expenses were incurred or other
amounts were paid, which prohibits or otherwise limits
indemnification; or

(ii) That it would be inconsistent with any condition expressly imposed
by a court in approving a settlement.

(b) Advancing Expenses.  The Corporation may advance to each agent the expenses

incurred in defending any proceeding referred to in Article 12 of these Bylaws prior to the final

disposition of such proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the agent to repay

such amount unless it shall be determined ultimately that the agent is entitled to be indemnified as

authorized in Article 12 of these Bylaws.

(c) Insurance.  The Corporation shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance on

behalf of any agent of the Corporation against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent

in such capacity or arising out of the agent’s status as such whether or not the Corporation would

have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the provisions of this section;

provided, however, that the Corporation shall have no power to purchase and maintain such

insurance to indemnify any agent of the Corporation for a violation of laws pertaining to self-dealing

transactions.

ARTICLE 13

Amendments
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These Bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at any special

or regular meeting of the Board, provided that written notice of the proposed amendment has been

given to all Directors at least one week in advance of the meeting.

Certified as the official Bylaws of AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC. 

______________________________________
Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors
Affordable Housing Resources, Inc.:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Affordable Housing Resources, Inc. (the
"Agency"), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Agency as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required  to be independent of the Agency and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.

Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control. Accordingly,

no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency's ability to continue as a going

concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 22,
2022 on our consideration of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters.   The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the Agency's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Brentwood, Tennessee
June 22, 2022
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,641,297 $ 349,780
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,503,496 1,725,094
Restricted certificates of deposit - 481,337
Grants and accounts receivable 245,900 477,924
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 58,044 44,551
Investment in joint venture 250,000 250,000
Receivable from joint venture 1,741,121 152,962
Notes receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible notes of

$629,658 and $618,095 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively 12,989,588 12,415,959

Property, buildings and equipment, net 661,627 686,708
Property held for sale 3,946,741 4,394,809

Total assets $ 24,037,814 $ 20,979,124

Liabilities and Net Assets

Accounts payable $ 195,871 $ 95,065
Accrued expenses 69,883 35,628
Agency payable 838,550 1,377,800
Notes payable and lines of credit 3,026,534 2,259,128

Liabilities before equity equivalent obligations 4,130,838 3,767,621

Other liabilities - equity equivalent obligations 13,786,791 13,689,666

Total liabilities 17,917,629 17,457,287

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 2,346,583 1,352,889
With donor restrictions 3,773,602 2,168,948

Total net assets 6,120,185 3,521,837

$ 24,037,814 $ 20,979,124

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended December 31, 2021

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Support and revenues:
Public support:

Grants - NeighborWorks America $ 540,326 $ - $ 540,326
Other contributions and grants 623,479 2,047,421 2,670,900

Total public support 1,163,805 2,047,421 3,211,226

Program revenue:
Rental income 34,733 - 34,733
Counseling and mortgage fees 140,607 - 140,607
Loan interest income 332,398 - 332,398
Developer fees 195,000 - 195,000
Other interest income 11,171 - 11,171

Total program revenue 713,909 - 713,909

Total public support and revenues 1,877,714 2,047,421 3,925,135

Expenses:
Program services -

Low-income housing assistance 1,746,588 - 1,746,588

Supporting services -
Management and general 306,202 - 306,202

Total expenses 2,052,790 - 2,052,790

Change in net assets from operations (175,076) 2,047,421 1,872,345

Other changes in net assets:
Net assets released from restrictions 442,767 (442,767) -
Gain on sale of property, buildings, and

equipment and property held for sale 664,131 - 664,131
Gain on extinguishment of debt 48,678 - 48,678
Other income 13,194 - 13,194

Total other changes in net assets 1,168,770 (442,767) 726,003

Change in net assets 993,694 1,604,654 2,598,348

Net assets at beginning of year 1,352,889 2,168,948 3,521,837

Net assets at end of year $ 2,346,583 $ 3,773,602 $ 6,120,185

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year ended December 31, 2020

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Support and revenues:
Public support:

Grants - NeighborWorks America $ 514,497 $ - $ 514,497
In-kind donations of property 1,083,700 - 1,083,700
Other contributions and grants 1,411,821 - 1,411,821

Total public support 3,010,018 - 3,010,018

Program revenue:
Rental income 19,999 - 19,999
Counseling and mortgage fees 274,259 - 274,259
Loan interest income 327,323 - 327,323
Other interest income 11,107 - 11,107

Total program revenue 632,688 - 632,688

Total public support and revenues 3,642,706 - 3,642,706

Expenses:
Program services -

Low-income housing assistance 1,665,348 - 1,665,348

Supporting services -
Management and general 293,351 - 293,351

Total expenses 1,958,699 - 1,958,699

Change in net assets from operations 1,684,007 - 1,684,007

Other changes in net assets:
Release from restriction 457,148 (457,148) -
Gain on sale of property, buildings, and

equipment and property held for sale 137,686 - 137,686
Gain on extinguishment of debt 30,169 - 30,169

Total other changes in net assets 625,003 (457,148) 167,855

Change in net assets 2,309,010 (457,148) 1,851,862

Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year (956,121) 2,626,096 1,669,975

Net assets  at end of year $ 1,352,889 $ 2,168,948 $ 3,521,837

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2021

Program Services
Supporting

Services

Low-Income
Housing

Assistance
Management and

General Totals

Advertising and communication $ 58,869 $ 8,797 $ 67,666
Automobile 14,033 2,097 16,130
Contract labor 75,544 11,288 86,832
Depreciation 24,856 3,390 28,246
Repairs and maintenance 40,139 5,998 46,137
Direct expenses of developed properties 98,290 - 98,290
Insurance 16,402 2,237 18,639
Interest 1,278 - 1,278
Direct expenses for disaster relief and

COVID-19 related assistance programs 830,567 - 830,567
Occupancy and rental 65,788 9,830 75,618
Office expenses 39,982 5,974 45,956
Payroll and related costs 377,372 241,642 619,014
Professional fees 73,054 10,916 83,970
Taxes, licenses and fees 5,158 771 5,929
Training 3,427 - 3,427
Travel and entertainment 14,411 2,153 16,564
Utilities 7,418 1,109 8,527

$ 1,746,588 $ 306,202 $ 2,052,790

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year ended December 31, 2020

Program Services
Supporting

Services

Low-Income
Housing

Assistance
Management and

General Totals

Advertising and communication $ 43,576 $ 6,511 $ 50,087
Automobile 12,425 1,857 14,282
Contract labor 64,604 9,654 74,258
Depreciation 20,037 2,732 22,769
Repairs and maintenance 38,174 5,704 43,878
Direct expenses of developed properties 73,086 - 73,086
Insurance 16,776 2,288 19,064
Interest 8,284 - 8,284
Direct expenses for disaster relief and

COVID-19 related assistance programs 728,684 - 728,684
Occupancy and rental 65,735 9,822 75,557
Office expenses 61,821 9,238 71,059
Payroll and related costs 379,471 237,538 617,009
Professional fees 37,707 5,634 43,341
Provision for uncollectible notes 96,000 - 96,000
Taxes, licenses and fees 2,580 386 2,966
Training 3,087 - 3,087
Travel and entertainment 9,659 1,443 11,102
Utilities 3,642 544 4,186

$ 1,665,348 $ 293,351 $ 1,958,699

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets $ 2,598,348 $ 1,851,862
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Depreciation 28,246 22,769
Provision for uncollectible notes receivable, net of recoveries 11,563 96,000
Gain on extinguishment of debt (48,678) (30,169)
In-kind contributions of property - (1,083,700)
Gain on sale of property, buildings, and equipment and property held

for sale (664,131) (137,686)

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Grants and accounts receivable 232,024 (398,093)
Receivable from joint venture (1,588,159) (61,006)
Prepaid expense and other assets (13,493) (20,225)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable 100,806 (18,418)
Accrued liabilities 34,255 (7,222)

Total adjustments (1,907,567) (1,637,750)

Net cash provided by operating activities 690,781 214,112

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of property, buildings, and equipment and property

held for sale 3,253,492 933,479
Purchases of property, buildings and equipment (4,256) (308,690)
Purchases of property held for sale (2,140,202) (1,095,536)
Purchases of certificates of deposit and reinvested interest - (10,261)
Redemptions of certificates of deposit 481,337 238,058
Advances of notes receivable (1,839,894) (2,450,502)
Collections from notes receivable 715,452 340,202

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 465,929 (2,353,250)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from notes payable and lines of credit 1,616,231 600,102
Payments of notes payable and lines of credit (848,825) (358,234)
Proceeds from equity equivalent obligations 250,000 711,000
Repayments of equity equivalent obligations (104,197) -

Net cash provided by financing activities 913,209 952,868

Increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 2,069,919 (1,186,270)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year 2,074,874 3,261,144

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 4,144,793 $ 2,074,874

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash to the accompanying statements of financial position:

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,641,297 $ 349,780
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2,503,496 1,725,094

Total $ 4,144,793 $ 2,074,874

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

(1) Nature of activities

Affordable Housing Resources, Inc. (the "Agency") was chartered in 1989 as a Tennessee not-for-
profit corporation. The purpose of the Agency is to "create affordable housing and strong
neighborhoods" by increasing home ownership opportunities for families and individuals who
are unable to obtain assistance through traditional public and private funding sources in the
greater Nashville area. The Agency is supported principally by service fees, sale of single-family
homes, private and public contributions and grants from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development through the Metropolitan Development and Housing Agency ("MDHA"), the
Tennessee Housing Development Agency ("THDA") and the Neighborhood Reinvestment
Corporation, dba NeighborWorks® America ("NWA").

The following program and supporting services are included in the accompanying financial
statements:

Low-Income Housing Assistance - includes various lending and development programs. The
loan products include down payment and closing cost assistance loans and construction
financing for single-family properties. Home-ownership programs include promoting home-
ownership opportunities in Nashville, Tennessee, development of quality new affordable
housing, acquisition and rehabilitation of single family properties, land acquisition and
development, consumer home buyer education to prepare new homeowners, and
developing community leadership programs.

During 2021 and 2020, the Agency received certain governmental and other grants to
provide assistance to victims of natural disasters in the Middle Tennessee area for home
repairs and to provide housing assistance to those impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Management and General - includes the functions necessary to ensure an adequate working
environment and costs not identifiable with a single program or fund-raising activity,
including costs associated with providing coordination and articulation of the Agency's
program strategy, business management, general record keeping, budgeting and related
purposes.

(2) Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the Agency are presented on the accrual basis. The significant
accounting policies followed are described below.

(a) Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, and cash equivalents and certificates of
deposit

The Agency considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of less than three
months to be cash equivalents. 
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Additionally, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Agency had cash, cash equivalents and
certificates of deposit restricted for future investments in income producing properties and
mortgage loans. 

(b) Grants and accounts receivable and provision for uncollectible items

The Agency reports grants and accounts receivable, net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts, at the amount which represents management's estimate of the amount that
ultimately will be realized. The Agency reviews the adequacy of its allowance for
uncollectible accounts on an ongoing basis, using historical payment trends, as well as
review of specific accounts, and makes adjustments in the allowance as necessary. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, no allowance for doubtful accounts was considered
necessary.

(c) Notes receivable and provision for uncollectible items

The Agency holds various notes receivable under programs in conjunction with its defined
mission. These notes are secured by the properties for which the loans were originally
provided to purchase or assist with the down payment and are due to the Agency upon sale
of the related property. Notes receivable are considered impaired when, based on current
information, it is probable that all amounts or a portion of principal and interest due will not
be collected according to the terms of the note agreement. Generally, a note receivable is
considered impaired when the individual debtor cannot be located or has declared
bankruptcy. The allowance for uncollectible notes is established by charges to program
services expense and is maintained at an amount which management believes will be
adequate to absorb losses on existing loans. Uncollectible loans are charged to the
allowance account in the period in which such a determination is made. 

(d) Property, buildings and equipment

Property, buildings and equipment additions, major renewals and betterments are recorded
at cost at the date of purchase, at fair value on the date of gift if the value is readily
determinable, or other reasonable basis, as determined by the Board of Directors, if cost is
unknown. Depreciation is computed by using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. When property is retired or sold, the cost and the related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is
included in changes in net assets.

(e) Property held for sale

Property held for sale is recorded at the lower of cost or fair market value. The Agency's
management has approved a plan to sell its existing housing and commercial development
properties. As a result, the assets have been classified as property held for sale at December
31, 2021 and 2020 and includes properties in the process of being constructed for sale as
well as completed properties. 
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

(f) Joint venture

During 2019, the Agency entered into an unincorporated joint venture agreement with a
third party to develop single bedroom low-income housing units. Subject to the agreement,
the other joint venture partner transferred land to be used for development of the project
to the joint venture and the Agency invested $250,000 cash in exchange for a 50%
ownership interest. Under the terms of the joint venture, the Agency is responsible for
managing the project and obtaining financing. As such, the Agency obtained a construction
line of credit with a bank for up to $2,000,000, which was amended during 2020 for up to
$2,800,000, to fund development costs that is available through August 2022.  All costs
incurred by the Agency on behalf of the joint venture are recorded as a receivable from the
joint venture in the accompanying statement of financial position. The line of credit is
secured by the underlying constructed property. Approximately $1,600,000 and $193,000
was outstanding on the line of credit at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Once the
development project is complete and all housing units are sold, the related line of credit or
other loans will be repaid and the joint venture parties will be reimbursed for any additional
cash contributions made to the project prior to distribution of any remaining profits, which
shall be shared equally between the Agency and the other joint venture partner.

(g) Net assets

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Agency and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such
as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor.
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates
that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released
when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the
stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

All contributions are considered to be available with no donor restrictions unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or
restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions
that increase those net asset classes. When the restriction is fulfilled (that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets are
reclassified to those without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions. Contributions restricted by donors are recorded as
increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting
period in which the revenue is recognized.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

(h) Agency transactions

The Agency receives funds from NWA under the Neighborhood LIFT ("LIFT") program and
from financial institutions under similar programs (Note 12). The Agency does not have any
discretionary powers over these funds and must administer the programs according to the
terms of the grant agreements. As a result, no revenue or expense is recorded (except for
administrative fees earned), but instead the Agency records an asset (cash or notes
receivable) and corresponding liability (agency payable). The agency payable is reduced as
the related notes receivable are forgiven.

(i) Revenue recognition

Agency revenues are generated primarily from fees for services, processing, and servicing
fees. A performance obligation is a contractual promise to transfer a distinct good or
service, or a bundle of goods or services, to the customer, and is the unit of accounting. A
contract’s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and
recognized as revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied. The Agency's
contracts typically have a single performance obligation.

Loan programs and other related fees:

Loan application fees are earned and recorded as revenue at a point in time when the loan
application is completed by the applicant with all required documentation and accepted by
the Agency. Loan origination fees are earned on loan closings and recorded as revenue at a
point in time when the performance obligation is met which is determined to be when the
loan closes and funds are advanced to the customer. Loan late fees on outstanding loans are
recognized as revenue at a point in time when the payments are due and the customer has
not paid the payments under the contract terms. Development fees are earned by the
Agency when the related property is constructed and sold to a homeowner.

Interest Income:

Interest income is recognized over time based on the life of a loan. The Agency has a signed
promissory note with all borrowers which constitutes a contract with the customer,
contains the loan terms, and documents the obligations of the Agency and the borrower.
Each loan receivable is considered separately and has its own specific terms. The agency
recognizes interest income over the time of the loan at the applicable interest rates in each
loan agreement.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Contributions:

Contributions and other public support are generally recognized at the time of receipt as
there are no performance obligations that are required to be satisfied.  The Agency reports
any gifts of property, equipment or materials as unrestricted support unless explicit donor
restrictions specify how the assets must be used and no performance obligations exist. Gifts
of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions as to how the assets are to be used or funds
restricted for the acquisition of long-lived assets are reported as restricted support.
Expirations of donor restrictions are recognized when the donated or acquired long-lived
assets are placed in service as the performance obligation is considered to be met at that
point in time.

Grants:

Grants are recorded and recognized as revenue when grant funds are received or
unconditionally pledged, if there are no performance requirements in the grant agreement.
In accordance with industry guidance, revenue from lending program grants are recognized
as revenue and support when the funds are received. For any grant agreements that include
performance obligations, revenue is recognized when the related performance obligations
are met. Funds from grants with a performance requirement which are received in advance
are recorded as a refundable government grant and recognized as revenue when the
performance requirements are met.

(j) Income taxes

The Agency is exempt from federal income taxes under the provisions of Internal Revenue
Code ("IRC") Section 501(c)(3), and, accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in
the financial statements.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Agency has accrued no interest and no penalties
related to uncertain tax positions. It is the Agency’s policy to recognize interest and/or
penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

The Agency files a U.S. Federal information tax return. 

(k) Functional allocation of expenses

Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting services. Expenses
related to more than one function are charged to programs and supporting services based
upon various allocation methods, including time spent on various functions by employees.
General and administrative expenses include those expenses that are not directly
identifiable with any other specific functions but provide for the overall support and
direction of the Agency.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

(l) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(m) Events occurring after reporting date

Management of the Agency has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between
December 31, 2021 and June 22, 2022 which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued for possible recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. No
such events or transactions were noted requiring recognition or disclosure in the financial
statements.

(n) New accounting standards, not yet adopted

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting

Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-02, Leases ("ASU 2016-02"). ASU 2016-02 will generally
require statement of financial position recognition for all leases with terms that exceed
twelve months. The new lease accounting model will continue to reflect two types of leases.
Under the new rules, a lessee would account for most existing capital leases as finance
leases (that is, recognizing amortization of the right-of-use ("ROU") asset, as well  as
separately recognizing interest on the lease liability in the statement of activities). Most
existing operating leases will remain as operating leases (that is, recognizing a single total
lease expense). Both finance leases and operating leases will result in the lessee recognizing
a ROU asset and a lease liability. The guidance is effective for the Agency beginning January
1, 2022.

(o) Reclassifications

Certain items in the 2020 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
presentation of the 2021 financial statements.  These reclassifications had no effect on the
statement of activities and changes in net assets as previously reported.

(3) Credit risk and other concentrations

The Agency periodically maintains cash on deposit at banks in excess of federally insured
amounts. The Agency has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes
the Agency is not exposed to any significant credit risk related to cash.
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

The Agency received approximately 13% of its total public support and revenues from
NeighborWorks® America during 2021. Additionally, the Agency received approximately 21% and
38% of its public support and revenues from one-time grants related to the Coronavirus
pandemic as COVID-19 relief funds, tornado mitigation, and construction of homes during 2021
and 2020, respectively. The Agency received approximately 15% of its total public support and
revenues from NeighborWorks® America and 31% from in-kind donations during 2020. 

(4) Liquidity and availability

A summary of the Agency's financial assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, reduced by
amounts not available for general use because of donor-imposed restrictions, within one year of
the statement of financial position date is as follows:

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,641,297 $ 349,780
Grants and accounts receivable 245,900 477,924

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one year $ 1,887,197 $ 827,704

As part of the Agency's liquidity management plan, we invest cash in excess of daily
requirements is invested in short-term investments, CDs, and money market funds.

(5) Notes receivable

First and second mortgage loans to homebuyers are made for terms of 4 to 15 years, at annual
interest rates ranging from 3% to 7.5%. There were no material notes receivable with payments
greater than 90 days past due as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. The notes receivable are
collateralized by real estate. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance of such loans totaled
$6,454,867 and $6,535,778, respectively. Additionally, the Agency recorded an allowance for
loan losses totaling $629,658 and $618,095 at  December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Notes receivable also include non-interest bearing notes that are grants that are forgiven over a
period of up to 15 years, as long as the homeowner continues to own the property, or repaid
upon the future sale of the property ("soft-third mortgages"). The soft third mortgages are
secured by liens on the homeowner's property. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the balance of
the soft-third mortgage loans totaled $7,164,379 and $6,498,276, respectively.

The soft-third mortgages that are forgiven over time under the LIFT program (Note 12) are
reported as agency transactions. As these notes are forgiven, the note receivable is reduced with
a corresponding decrease in the balance of the Agency Payable liability. The balance of these
notes receivable and the corresponding agency payable liability totaled $838,550 and $1,377,800
at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. During 2021 and 2020, approximately $539,000
and $618,000 of agency payables were amortized against the corresponding notes receivable
balances. 
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

(6) Property, buildings, and equipment

A summary of property, buildings and equipment at December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021 2020

Land $ 160,000 $ 160,000
Buildings and improvements 495,410 495,410
Furniture and equipment 101,267 98,102

Total cost 756,677 753,512
Accumulated depreciation (95,050) (66,804)

Property, buildings and equipment, net $ 661,627 $ 686,708

(7) Notes payable

A summary of notes payable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021 2020

Two notes payable to the Community Development
Financial Institutions Fund, maturing in April 2023,
non-interest bearing. $ 250,000 $ 250,000

Note payable to MDHA, maturing in November 2022,
non-interest bearing. 250,000 250,000

Note payable to THDA, repaid during 2021. - 22,754

Note payable to a bank, repaid during 2021. - 98,100

Various construction lines of credit requiring monthly
interest payments at variable rates (0% - 4.0% as of
December 31, 2021) and fixed rates (3.50% at
December 31, 2021) with total maximum borrowings
of approximately $6,774,000 at December 31, 2021.
Total borrowings under the lines of credit are to be
used for construction of single-family homes and
single-bedroom low-income housing units. All lines of
credit generally are for one to two year terms and
mature between August 2022 and August 2023 and
are secured by the constructed property and real
estate. The agency expects to extend the terms of
outstanding lines of credit as they become due until
completion of the respective construction projects. 1,606,900 333,835
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Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2021 and 2020

Note payable to a bank, matured and paid off in June
2021. - 250,000

Notes payable to banks, matured and paid off in July
2021. - 5,117

Total notes payable with defined maturities 2,106,900 1,209,806

Notes payable to banks with interest at an annual rate
of the Prime Rate minus 4.00% (0% at December 31,
2021). These notes payable have no defined maturities
(see below). 919,634 1,049,322

Total notes payable $ 3,026,534 $ 2,259,128

Notes payable without defined maturities are collateralized by certain notes receivable held by
the Agency (the "Collateral Notes"). The notes payable are due only when principal payment on
the Collateral Notes has been received or the homes acting as security interest for the Collateral
Notes have been sold.

With the exception of the notes payable without defined maturities discussed above, most of the
above notes are secured by deeds of trust on the related real estate. Additionally, management
of the Agency determined that the imputation of interest on non-interest bearing notes payable
was immaterial. 

Following is a schedule of required future principal payments on notes payable with defined
maturities as of December 31, 2021:

Year Amount

2022 $ 1,826,491
2023 250,000

2027 and later years 30,409

$ 2,106,900

 No amount of principal due was in arrears at December 31, 2021 or 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(8) Equity equivalent obligations

The Agency carries certain obligations to banks that are classified as Equity Equivalent ("EQ2")
funds. These obligations are shown under Other Liabilities on the statements of financial position
in order to represent more clearly the nature of the payable and to adhere to industry practice.
The EQ2 is defined by having six attributes as follows:

(1) The EQ2 investment is carried as an investment on the investor’s statement of financial
position in accordance with GAAP; 

(2) The EQ2 investment is a general obligation of the Agency that is not secured by any of the
Agency's assets; 

(3) The EQ2 investment is fully subordinated to the right of repayment of all the Agency’s
other creditors; 

(4) The EQ2 investment does not give the investor the right to accelerate payment unless the
Agency ceases its normal operations; 

(5) The EQ2 investment carries an interest rate that is not tied to any income received by the
Agency; and 

(6) The EQ2 investment has a rolling term, and therefore, an indeterminate maturity (also
known as an evergreen provision). 

These obligations either carry a zero interest rate or an interest rate of Prime minus 4% at
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

(9) Net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes or periods: 

2021 2020

Subject to expenditure for specified purposes:
Housing and low-income down payment assistance $ 3,773,602 $ 2,168,948

Net assets with donor restrictions include funds utilized for the purchase or construction of low-
income housing as restricted by donors. Certain grants do not address if or when restrictions
expire or are released upon forgiveness of loan balances or losses incurred from the disposition
of such properties. The Agency has maintained the restrictions that existed on the original grants
unless otherwise indicated by the donors. At December 31, 2021, the net assets with donor
restrictions also include $1,500,000 received from a governmental grant for financial assistance
to low-income recipients and other low-income housing projects for which no amounts had been
expended at December 31, 2021.
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(10) Employee benefit plan

The Agency has a defined contribution employee benefit plan for eligible employees under
provisions of section 403(b) of the IRC. Eligible employees may elect to contribute a percentage
of their compensation, subject to certain limitations, to the plan on a pre-tax basis. The Agency
will match one-half of each employee's contributions, up to a maximum matching contribution of
3% of the employee's eligible compensation. The Agency expensed employer contributions of
$15,661 and $14,772 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(11) Operating leases

The Agency utilizes office space under an operating lease. Rent expense under this lease totaled
$68,080 and $68,081 during 2021 and 2020, respectively. Future minimum payment under this
lease is expected to total approximately $68,000 over the next year.

(12) Neighborhood LIFT and similar programs

The Agency participates in the Neighborhood LIFT program. The program is a collaboration
between Wells Fargo Foundation, NWA and local non-profit organizations, including the Agency.
Grants under the LIFT program are used to assist low-to-moderate income persons through down
payment assistance grants. Under the LIFT program, grants to beneficiaries are forgiven over a
period of five years and any recaptured funds not forgiven must be granted to other eligible
beneficiaries during the program which was in effect through May 2022.  Agency payable in the
accompanying statements of financial position represents the total cash available for grant to
beneficiaries plus the outstanding unamortized notes receivable from beneficiaries under the
LIFT program. 

The Agency has also entered into other agreements with financial institutions for down payment
assistance programs similar to the LIFT program. Under these assistance programs, grants to
beneficiaries are generally due on the future sale of the related property.

The Agency receives administrative fees for each grant under the programs which are included in
"Counseling and mortgage fees" in the accompanying statements of activities.

(13) Commitments and contingencies

The disbursement of funds received under federal and state governmental grant programs
generally requires compliance with the terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements
and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits
could become a liability of the Agency. In management's opinion, any such disallowed claims will
not have a material effect on the Agency.
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(14) Supplemental disclosures of cash flow statement information

2021 2020

Interest paid $ 1,267 $ 8,278

(15) Related party transactions

The Agency contracted with an affiliated general contractor during 2021 and 2020 to construct
certain property held for sale. Payments made during 2021 and 2020 to the affiliate totaled
approximately $119,000 and $336,000, respectively.
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended December 31, 2021

FALN Federal Grantor / Pass-through Grantor / Program Title Grant Number Expenditures

U.S. Dept. of Treasury
21.000 NeighborWorks® America N/A $ 185,000
21.000 NeighborWorks® America N/A 290,000
21.000 NeighborWorks® America N/A 20,000
21.000 NeighborWorks® America N/A 9,000
21.000 NeighborWorks® America N/A 5,000
21.000 NeighborWorks® America N/A 1,500
21.000 NeighborWorks® America N/A 500

Total program 21.000 511,000
21.019 Passed through from Metropolitan

Government of Nashville and Davidson
County and Administered by United
Way of Greater Nashville: Coronavirus
Relief Fund - COVID-19 N/A 246,251

Total U.S. Dept. of Treasury 757,251

U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development
14.218 Passed through from Metropolitan

Development and Housing Agency:
Community Development Block Grant -
COVID-19 CDBG-CV 554,688

14.218 Passed through from NeighborWorks®
America: Housing Counseling
Assistance Program N/A 29,326

Total U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development 584,014

Total federal awards $ 1,341,265

See accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Grant Awards
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Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year ended December 31, 2021

(1) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Grant Awards (the "Schedule") includes
the federal grant activity of Affordable Housing Resources, Inc. (the "Agency"). The information
in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance") as codified by HHS at 45 CFR Part 75 and
the State of Tennessee. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations
of the Agency, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of the Agency. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The expenditure threshold for classification as a Type A program is $750,000.

For purposes of the Schedule, expenditures of federal grant awards are recognized on the accrual
basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in
the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as
to reimbursement. 

The Agency did not receive or expend any Federal awards during fiscal year 2021 in the form of
non-cash assistance or provide any funds to subrecipients.

The Agency has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Affordable Housing Resources, Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Affordable Housing Resources, Inc. (the "Agency"), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets,
functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 22, 2022.  

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Agency's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a

material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Agency’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Agency’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Brentwood, Tennessee
June 22, 2022
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

The Board of Directors
Affordable Housing Resources, Inc.:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Affordable Housing Resources, Inc.'s (the "Agency") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the Agency's major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2021. The Agency's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors'
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Agency complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities
under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required  to be independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Agency's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grants agreements
applicable to the Agency's federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Agency's compliance based on our audit.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Agency's compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards and the uniform Guidance, we:

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include

examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Agency's compliance with the

compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we

consider necessary in the circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the Agency's internal control over compliance relevant to the

audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to

test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform

Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Agency's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate to those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Brentwood, Tennessee
June 22, 2022
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended December 31, 2021

(1)     SUMMARY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes  No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  Yes  None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  Yes  No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?  Yes  No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  Yes  None reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance?  Yes  No

Identification of major programs for the Agency for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021
are as follows:

Federal
Assistance

Listing Number Grantor Programs

14.218 U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban
Development

Community Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants

21.019 U.S. Dept. of Treasury Coronavirus Relief Fund

Dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?  Yes  No

(2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None

(3) FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS

None

(4) SUMMARY OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

None
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AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESOURCES, INC.

Schedule of Financial Position and Changes in Net Assets - Neighborhood Reinvestment Revolving
Loan and Capital Projects Fund (Net Assets With Donor Restrictions)

Schedules of Financial Position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Assets

Cash $ - $ -
Notes receivable - -
Development in progress / Property held for sale - -

Total Assets $ - $ -

Liabilities and Net Assets

Net assets with donor restrictions, held in perpetuity $ - $ -

Schedules of Changes in Net Assets for the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Change in net assets - released from restrictions $ - $ (457,148)

Net assets, beginning - 457,148

Net assets, ending $ - $ -

Notes:
Investment income and interest on outstanding loans were earned on the net assets of the
Neighborhood Reinvestment Capital Fund ("NRC") and were available for unrestricted use by the
Agency. All of these amounts were transferred to the net assets without donor restrictions during
those years. There were no proceeds from capital projects in excess of the amount of funds
necessary to maintain the net assets at a level disclosed in the Capital Funds Agreement with NRC.
Accordingly, no funds were transferred from NRC for that purpose. Amounts released from
restriction represents amounts formally approved for release by NeighborWorks® America.
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